
 
 
 

 
 
 

          6 September 2016 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 14 September 2016 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in the 
The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford,  

SO53 2GJ 

 
TO: Councillor Pamela Holden-Brown (Chair) 
 Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Margaret Atkinson Councillor Mrs Haulwen Broadhurst 
Councillor Judith Grajewski Councillor Daniel Hatfield 
Councillor Michael Hughes Councillor David Pragnell 

 
Staff Contacts: Matt  Dobrowolski,  Democratic Services Officer Tel:023 8068 

8080;Email: mateusz.dobrowolski@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 Andy.Thompson, Area Co-ordinator Tel: 023 8068 8357; Email: 

andy.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Eastleigh House 

 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 06 July 2016. 
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
4. Public Participation     
 
5. Chairman's report     
 
6. Area Co-ordinator's Report     
 
7. Implementation of a Public Space Protection Order - Chandler's Ford    (Pages 9 - 

24) 
 
8. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
9. Planning Application - 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AW    

(Pages 25 - 36)  

 Ref. F/16/78963 - Two storey front, side and rear extension with new vehicular 
access from Nichol Road (amended design to F/16/78385) 

  
10. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals has been lodged:- 
 
1 Merdon Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh. SO53 1EF - Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning permission for a two storey side and rear extension, 
and a single storey rear extension. 
 

This was a Delegated Decision.      
 
(b) that the following appeals have been allowed:- 
 
 
6 Wellbrooke Gardens, Chandler’s Ford, Hampshire SO53 1TN - Appeal against 
the Council’s refusal of planning permission  for change of use of land to private 
garden : Retrospective (amended description) (Ref:F/15/76762) 
 
13 Grosvenor Road, Chandlers Ford, Hampshire SO33 5BU – Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO). (Ref.T/15/77691) 

      
 



 
      

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 16 November 2016 at 7:00 pm 
at The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, 

Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GJ 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 6 July 2016  (7:00 pm – 10:00 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holden-Brown (Chairman); Councillor A Broadhurst, Atkinson, 
Mrs Broadhurst, Grajewski, Hatfield, M Hughes and Pragnell 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
 
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2016 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Pamela Holden-Brown declared a personal Interest in agenda 
item 9, 10 and 11 Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North 
Millers Dale, and Chandler’s Ford, because she is a Trustee of Hiltingbury 
Community Association. 
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation at this time. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
Chair welcomed the recently elected Councillor Daniel Hatfield and all the 
other Members who were re-elected.  
She also introduced the new Democratic Services officer, Matt 
Dobrowolski who recently joined the Democratic Services Unit. 
Chair was pleased that Hampshire County Council erected the Hocombe 
Drive road signage. 
 

5. AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT 
 
The Area Co-Ordinator reported on the following items: 
 
AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT  
  

 TESCO COMMUNITY GRANT FUND – Following the previous 
unsuccessful £12,000 bid for local green spaces at various 

1

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

Countryside sites in Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury (CFH), with 
help from the countryside team, another expression of interest was 
submitted for the next round. The Council was once again 
encouraged to submit an application by the grant funders. This time 
it revamped the application, focusing on one countryside area only 
and also including a link to the local dementia friendly which would 
add another dimension to its application, but more importantly, to 
open up a very valuable local amenity for a group that until recently 
were largely forgotten.  

  

 HILTINGBURY LAKES – Following concerns raised by both 
members of the public and local Councillors, a site visit with the 
Countryside manager was arranged to walk the Hiltingbury lakes. 
Whilst budgetary restrictions would always limit the ability to 
undertake all the work and additions the Local Area Committee 
(LAC) would like to achieve, it was apparent that the site had not 
been maintained to the basic standard which would be acceptable. 
During the site visit, attended by the local Councillor, it was agreed 
with the Countryside manager for a two pronged attack. Firstly, 
some quick wins and visual improvements to those easy to fix 
areas, such as the cleaning of debris from the lake and the removal 
of laurel.  This work was booked in and would commence the 
following day and Friday the same week. The second stage, looking 
at the removal of redundant fencing and the widening of paths etc., 
would be planned into an agreed maintenance schedule of the 
coming months. 

  

 HILTINGBURY PAVILION DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – Working 
alongside the Parish Council, the Local Area Coordinator took the 
role of Project Manager for the Hiltingbury Pavilion Development 
project. Since the last LAC it was agreed a Project Initiation 
Document (PID) and TKL architects were commissioned (the 
architects for the Fryern Pavilion), to undertake a feasibility study to 
examine the viability of both a major refurbishment of the existing 
pavilion or to knock the building down and start again. The LAC 
would hope to have the costed concepts for both proposals back by 
the end of this month. Alongside this, having attended the last 
Parish Council meeting, Local Area Committee agreed a formal 
project Board to govern this project. Progress was made in a very 
short space of time and with the continued good will of the Parish 
and the continued enthusiasm and drive of all those involved it was 
felt that this project had taken off.  

  

 ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR – Following the much reported and 
documented spates of anti-social behaviour at the Fryern Arcade, 
the LAC had continued to liaise very closely with the Councils 
Community Safety Team. The Community Safety team dealt with 
this via a multi-agency approach. Following discussions with 
Community Safety Partnership, this LAC would formally consider a 
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) at its September Committee 

2



3 
 

meeting. This PSPO would give the power to ask people to stop 
drinking, and to confiscate alcohol if that person is, or is likely to, 
cause anti-social behaviour in the Chandler’s Ford town centre.  

  

 FUTURE EASTLEIGH – Eastleigh Borough Council is undergoing a 
major service redesign. This redesign aims to make the Council 
more customers focused and more efficient, enabling it to continue 
to deliver a high level service to residents on the back of year on 
year cuts. The Local Area Coordinator role, alongside all other 
senior managers, was scrutinised as the Council seeks to ensure 
they have the right people with the right skills in the right jobs. The 
role of Area Coordinator would still exist in part, though it would be 
known as a Local Area Manager. The roles would be similar, 
though the new role would seek to provide a greater strategic 
overview. It would be envisaged that all the senior management 
roles will be in filled by August of this year. 

  

 VARIOUS OTHER WORK includes the confirmation that post box’s 
within Chandler’s Ford would now be painted in the early part of 
2017; LAC would be working with colleagues in Environmental 
Health and Direct Services to investigate reports of a rat infestation 
and would be hosting a public information meeting on the 
developments at Alpha Park. 

 
6. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 

 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

7. PLANNING APPLICATION - 52 NICHOL ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, 
EASTLEIGH 
 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 8)concerning an application for a two storey 
front, side and rear extensions and new vehicular access from Nichol 
Road (Ref. F/16/78385). 
 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to: 
 
(1) The recommended conditions and reasons; and 
 
(2) The following additional conditions and reasons; 
 

3



4 
 

New condition 12 - No burning of materials obtained by site 
clearance or any other source shall take place during the demolition, 
construction and fitting out process.  Reason:  To protect the 
amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 

 
New condition 13 - No driven pilling shall take place on the 
development hereby permitted. Reason: To protect the amenity of 
the occupiers of the nearby dwellings. 

 
 

New condition 14 - Prior to the commencement of the development 
photographs of the existing condition of highway verges and 
footways around the application site shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
hereby approved shall not be occupied until post-development 
photographs of those highway verges and footway following the 
undertaking of any necessary repairs shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Reason: To 
ensure that any damage to the highway during construction is 
rectified. 
 
(NOTES: (1) Three residents spoke in objection to the application 
citing a number of issues including: the proposed scale of the 
extension was overbearing; clear building line and building style of 
the area was being compromised; and the character plan of the 
area was being compromised and the open character of the corner 
of Nichol and Randal Road would be lost. 
(2)Applicant’s architect spoke in support of the application citing 
several supporting factors: as previous applications were refused 
and appeal was dismissed, all of the points which the planning 
inspector raised were addressed: the proposed extensions were 
reduced; reduction of sunlight to the neighbouring property was 
solved by redesigning the size and shape of the roof. Overall 
footprint was reduced by 21%. 
(3) One resident spoke in support of the application. She cited the 
positive effect on the local economy, provision of adequate family 
housing as supporting factors. She disagreed that the proposed 
development had an overbearing character; and (4) a recorded vote 
was requested, and duly supported, in respect of Agenda item 8, the 
result of which was as follows: 
 
FOR: Cllr Alan Broadhurst, Cllr Haluwen Broadhurst, Cllr Pamela 
Holden-Brown, Cllr David Pagnell 
 
AGAINST: Cllr Margaret Atkinson, Cllr Judith Grajewski, Cllr Daniel 
Hatfield, Cllr Michael Hughes.  
 
FOR: 4; AGAINST: 4  
 

4



5 
 

Chair Cllr Pamela Holden-Brown had the casting vote in support of 
the application.) 

 
8. PLANNING APPLICATION - HILTONBURY FARMHOUSE, NORTH 

MILLERS DALE, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH 
 
As the Chair declared a personal interest in this application, the Vice 
Chair was in the Chair. 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the change of 
open space to private pub garden and provision of external cold room, 
installation of extractor fan and erection of 1.2m high timber palisade 
fence. (Ref.F/16/78284). 
 
Committee were advised of following updates: One further representation 
received but no new points were raised. 
 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the decision be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management in consultation with the Vice Chair, Councillor Pragnell 
and Councillor Grajewski, to PERMIT subject to: 
 
(1) That the proposed change of use of land be removed from the 

application; and 
 
(2) That the proposed erection of fencing be removed from the 

application. 
 
 

(Notes: (1) Three residents spoke in objection of the application citing a 
number of issues including: loss of open space due to the proposed 
installation of timber fencing; potential noise from the external fan and 
outside cold store; increased noise nuisance due to the proposed 
extended patio area; and - (2) Representative of the applicant - Punch 
Taverns spoke in support of the application.) 
 

9. PLANNING APPLICATION - HILTONBURY FARMHOUSE, NORTH 
MILLERS DALE, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH 
 
As the Chair declared a personal interest in this application, the Vice 
Chair was in the Chair. 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 10) concerning the Listed Building Consent: 
Change of use of open space to private pub garden and provision of 
external cold-room, installation of extractor fans and erection of 1.2 metre 
high timber palisade fence. (Ref.L/16/78285). 

5



6 
 

 
Committee were advised of following updates: One further representation 
received but no new points were raised. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the decision be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management in consultation with the Vice Chair, Cllr Pragnell and 
Cllr Grajewski, to PERMIT subject to: 
 
(1) That the proposed change of use of land be removed from the     
application.      
 
(2) That the proposed erection of fencing be removed from the 
application. 
 
(Notes: (1) Three residents spoke in objection of the application citing a 
number of issues including: loss of open space due to the proposed 
installation of timber fencing; potential noise from the external fan and 
outside cold store; increased noise nuisance due to the proposed 
extended patio area. (2) Representative of the applicant - Punch Taverns 
spoke in support of the application.) 
 

10. PLANNING APPLICATION - HILTONBURY FARMHOUSE, NORTH 
MILLERS DALE, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 11) concerning an application for a display of 
1no.non-illuminated hanging post sign, 2no. externally illuminated wall 
signs and 1no. non-illuminated wall sign. 
 
Committee was advised of the following updates: One further 
representation received but no new points raised.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That advert consent be GRANTED as set out. 
 

11. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported:- 
 
 (a)      That the following appeals had been lodged:- 
 

6 Wellbrooke Gardens, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 1TN - appeal 
against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for change of 
use of land to private garden: Retrospective (amended description) 
(Ref: F/15/76762.)  
 
This was a delegated decision 

6



7 
 

 
13 Grosvenor Road, Chandler’s Ford – Appeal against a refusal of 
planning permission for felling of 1 no. birch tree to front (Ref: 
T/15/77691.) 
 
This was a delegated decision 

  
(b)      that the following appeal had been dismissed:- 
 

10A Coultas Road, Chandler’s Ford, Hampshire SO53 5BD - 
appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for 
a first floor extension (Ref F/15/77352.) 
 
This was a delegated decision 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

12. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Councillor David Pragnell would continue as the representative 
at the Chandler’s Ford Community association. 
 
That Parish Councillor James Duguid would continue as the 
representative for the Hiltingbury Community Association. 
 
That Councillor Pamela Holden-Brown would continue as the 
representative for the North Millers Dale Community Association. 
 
 
 
 

13. APPOINTMENTS TO REGULATORY PANEL 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That all Members to serve as a ‘pool’, from which three Members 
could be called upon. 
 

14. APPOINTMENTS TO EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL/TEST VALLEY 
BOROUGH COUNCIL LIAISON GROUP 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That Councillors Alan Broadhurst and Judith Grajewski be 
appointed. 

7



8 
 

 
M5691 
 
 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

CHANDLERS FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

14 September 2016 

IMPLEMENTATION OF A PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 

CHANDLER’S FORD 

 

Report of the Community Safety & Emergency Planning Manager 

 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that  the Local Area Committee agree the making of the Public 
Spaces Protection Order as set out in the draft order in Appendix A for a period of 
three years. 
 

Summary 
A report on the   proposal to make a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for Chandlers 
Ford which will allow authorised officers powers to tackle drinking   when associated with 
anti-social behaviour. The report outlines the proposal, the findings of the public 
consultation and   supporting arguments for the introduction of the order. 
 

Statutory Powers 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 

Introduction 

1. The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, which came into 
force in October 2014, brought in new powers to allow Local Authorities to 
better tackle anti-social behaviour in their area. One of these powers was the 
ability to make a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO). These powers were 
adopted by the Council’s Cabinet on 18th June 2015. 

1.2  The Council consulted on the making of a Public Spaces Protection Order 
 (PSPO) in the summer of 2016, to assist in addressing the unreasonable and 
 persistent anti-social behaviour which was detrimentally affecting the quality 
 of life of residents, businesses and visitors to Chandlers Ford centre. 

9

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Background 

2.1  This issue is about tackling anti-social behaviour related to street drinking in 
 Chandlers Ford, within the area outlined in red on the Map. Appendix D 

2.2 Since October 2015 there have been an increasing number of calls and 
 complaints by members of the public and local businesses to the police and 
 the council about anti-social behaviour in Chandlers Ford town centre 
 generally and in Fryern Arcade in particular. Most of these calls relate to 
 behaviour by adult males who are drinking alcohol, fighting or urinating in 
 public.  The police received 57 calls in the period between 16th October 
 2015  and 17th April 2016. They also made use of s35 dispersal orders, 
 which allow them on a temporary basis to require persons behaving in an anti-
 social manner to leave the area, 12 statements from the public have also 
 been obtained. 

2.3 The police and council during this period have tried a number of measures to 
reduce this behaviour and some of these have been successful with a number 
of individuals. However the area also attracted many other individuals from 
other parts of Hampshire and the problems continued. Following 
representations by the police, shopkeepers, and members of the public, the 
Council’s community safety team decided that it should consider using the 
powers granted to it to try and control the behaviour that was being 
complained of. The measure proposed is the introduction of a controlled 
alcohol zone. 

2.4 This Public Space Protection Order proposes to bring in a controlled alcohol 
 zone for the shaded area of Chandlers Ford shown on the map (Appendix D). 
 This measure will mean that, whilst it is not an offence to drink alcohol in a 
 public space, it will be an offence to fail to comply with a request by an 
 authorised officer to cease drinking or surrender alcohol. 

2.5 The order will provide the police and other accredited officers with the power 
 to require individuals to stop consuming alcohol within the designated public 
 place.  Such an order provides a power of confiscation and disposal of the 
 alcohol, plus a police power of arrest should an individual fail to comply 
 with directions.   

2.6 Failure to comply can lead to prosecution or the issuing of a fixed penalty 
 notice of a maximum of £100. 

2.7 These discretionary powers will allow authorised officers to take positive 
 action where appropriate and prevent disorder; the alcohol consumption must 
 be associated with anti-social or disorderly behaviour or the belief that 
 such behaviour may occur. 

2.8 The proposed order is similar to the Designated Public Place Order (DPPO)  
 already in place in Eastleigh and Boyatt Wood since 2009.    DPPOs were 
 replaced by   the Public Spaces Protection Order in 2015. The DPPO has 
 been used successfully since 2009 by local police officers to stop anti-social 
 behaviour related to alcohol consumption through engagement and  

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 confiscations where necessary and there have been no prosecutions 
 needed.  

 Consultation  

3.1 As part of the decision making the Council is required under the legislation to 
 consult with the following parties via letter. 

 The Chief Constable of Hampshire Constabulary 

 The owners and occupiers of land covered by the proposed area 

 Community representatives - Chandlers Ford Parish Council 

3.2 In addition to the statutory consultees, it is best practice to consult more 
 widely and thus a public consultation was undertaken between 31st May and 
 11th July 2016. This was publicised on the Council’s website, making use  of 
 social media and other communications to make people aware of the 
 consultation exercise. 

 https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/the-council/news/2016/chandlers-ford-pspo.aspx 

Coverage was   also obtained in the Daily Echo and   through online media, 
additionally posters were put up in the area. 

 Results of the consultation.  

3.3  68 responses were received to a survey which was the preferred method of 
 collating responses to the consultation. There was one email but no other 
 communication received. A copy of the survey can be found in Appendix B. 
 A comprehensive document about the proposal with a FAQ was also 
 produced and put on the Council’s website. This can be found in Appendix C. 

3.4    The respondents were mainly either residents from the area or staff/owners 
 of local businesses.  

3.5 Of the 68 responses, 59 (87%) were in favour of the proposal. 

3.6     76% of the respondents stated that people being drunk or rowdy and 
drinking alcohol in public places was a very big or fairly big problem within the 
area. In free text replies to questions 3 and 4 the majority of responses 
expressed support citing the aggressive and unsociable behaviour, 
intimidation, urinating in public and feelings of being unsafe as reasons to 
support the proposal. 

3.7   Question 5 asked if other things should be included – responses included  
 widening the area to include Fryern Recreation Ground, acting against littering 
 and dealing with rowdy behaviour coming from people who have left
 licensed premises.  

3.8 Whilst the clear majority support the proposal, some disagreed. The main 
reasons given for this were that the police should use their existing powers to 

11

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/the-council/news/2016/chandlers-ford-pspo.aspx


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

tackle this type of behaviour that the Order would cover.  Many respondents 
whether in favour or against  stated that those who are homeless and   have  
substance misuse problems should be receiving support and would like to see 
that support existing alongside any enforcement action that is proposed to be 
taken. 

3.9 View of Hampshire Constabulary.   The local police are fully supportive of this 
 PSPO and indeed   proposed it along with others.   

 Reasons for decision 

4.1  There are clear concerns from residents and business representatives about 
 the problem with the consumption of alcohol, and associated anti-social 
 behaviour, in the centre of Chandlers Ford. There is a concern that this 
 creates a negative perception of the town and feelings of being unsafe and 
 intimidated as a result of the behaviours seen. It is suggested that the 
 introduction of a PSPO will send a clear message that inappropriate 
 behaviour associated with the consumption of alcohol will not be tolerated.  

4.2 It is not suggested that the PSPO alone will solve the problems but it does 
provide the police   with enforcement tool which can be used with discretion 
and allow the confiscation of the alcohol, a power which the police only have 
at present in respect of those under the age of 18.  

4.3 It is recognised that there needs to be support for those individuals who have 
problems of substance misuse and may be homeless. The council and police 
have  worked with charities and substance misuse services to try and help 
those in need in the past and will continue to do so. 

4.4 There is an amendment to the draft proposed order included  to allow Police 
Community Support Officers (PCSOs) the same powers following their 
inclusion in the consultation and on request from Hampshire Constabulary. 

Financial and legal Implications 

5. The cost of implementing the PSPO will be funded through existing budgets. 

Risk Assessment 

6. Following the introduction of the PSPO, there is a moderate risk of it being 
 ineffective if Hampshire Constabulary is unable to enforce its provisions 
 through lack of resources.  As such the creation of a DPPO could create 
 unachievable expectations.  In addition there is considered to be a risk of 
 displacement to areas in the borough and these will be closely 
 monitored.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7.  The decision to enforce the PSPO powers will be the individual officer’s 
 decision and the equalities impact will be considered by these officers on a 
 case by case basis.  There are no direct implications other than potentially 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 reducing the opportunity for substance misuse and the authorities will 
 continue to signpost people to the appropriate support agencies and services 

Conclusion 

8.1 Following consultation with the police, the proposal is to introduce a   PSPO in 
Chandlers Ford to cover the area outlined on Appendix D. This is to address 
alcohol related anti-social  behaviour and will enhance people’s feeling of 
safety, which can be harmed through witnessing the consumption of alcohol in 
public and the associated inappropriate behaviour. 

8.2  The Anti-social behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 permits a PSPO to be 
 imposed where there is evidence that consumption of alcohol in public is 
 associated with anti-social behaviour.  A formal public consultation has been 
 carried out, which resulted in an overwhelming desire for the Council to 
 implement such an Order. It is proposed that the order be made for three 
 years  

8.3 An interested person (as defined in Section 66(1) of the aforementioned Act) 
 may  apply to the High Court to question the validity of the order or any 
 variation thereof on the grounds specified in section 66(2) of the Act 
 within 6 weeks of the  date of the order or any subsequent variation. 

8.4 During this 6 week period the Order will be widely published in the area and 
awareness raising will be undertaken so that members of the public are 
conversant with the terms of the Order, signage will also be erected to draw 
attention to any member of public that the PSPO has been made and the 
effect of the Order. 

 

MELVIN HARTLEY 
COMMUNITY SAFETY AND EMERGENCY PLANNING MANAGER 
Date: 1st September 2016  
Contact Officer: Melvin Hartley 
Tel No: 023 8068 8149 
e-mail: Melvin.hartley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 4 
*Report No 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

mailto:Melvin.hartley@eastleigh.gov.uk


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

Appendices 
 
A. Draft order 
B. Survey  
C. Proposal and FAQ document 
D. Map (attached as PDF document) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
APPENDIX A   DRAFT ORDER 

 
 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 

SECTION 59 

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2015 

The Eastleigh Borough Council (Chandlers Ford) Public Spaces Protection 

Order No.1 of 2016 

 

Eastleigh Borough Council (“The Council”) makes the following Order in exercise of 

its powers under s.59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

(“The Act”) 

1. This Order may be cited as the Eastleigh Borough Council (Chandlers Ford) 

Public Spaces Protection Order (“the Order”) 

 

2. This Order takes effect on the 15th September 2016 and continues to have 

effect for a period of three years thereafter. 

 

3. This Order applies to the land (“the Restricted Area”) and is shown red on the 

attached plan (“the Order plan”). 

 

4. This Order applies to all persons within the Restricted Area at all times of the 

day and night. 

 

Prohibitions 

I. Persons not to act in a manner that causes harassment, alarm or distress as 

a result of consuming alcohol within the Restricted Area. 

 

II. No person shall within the restricted area refuse to stop drinking alcohol or 

hand over containers (sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain 

alcohol, when required to do so by an authorised officer to prevent public 

nuisance and disorder. 

 

The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 59 and 72 of the Act 

have been satisfied and that it is, in all the circumstances, expedient to make this 

Order for the purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The 

Council is satisfied that activities have been carried out in the Restricted Area that 

have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality. Furthermore the 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Council is satisfied that the effect of the activities is, or is likely to be, of a persistent 

or continuing nature, and is, or is likely to be such as to make the activity 

unreasonable and the effect justifies the restrictions imposed. 

The Council makes this Order because people have been gathering in the Restricted 

Area and consuming alcohol and acting in a manner causing alarm, harassment and 

distress to the local community. 

Offences 

Failure without reasonable excuse to comply with the prohibitions or requirements 

imposed by this Order is a summary offence under Section 67 of the Act. A person 

guilty of an offence under Section 67 of the Act is liable on summary conviction to a 

fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale. 

Failure to comply with a requirement of a constable, a Police Community Support 

Officer or an authorised person not to consume alcohol or anything they reasonably 

believe to be alcohol; or to surrender anything which a constable, Police Community 

Support Officer or authorised officer reasonably believes to be alcohol or a container 

for alcohol, is a summary offence under Section 63 of the Act. A person guilty of an 

offence under Section 63 of the Act is liable on summary conviction to a fine not 

exceeding level 2 on the standard scale. 

SCHEDULE 1 

The land to which this Order applies includes the following: 

Parts of Winchester Road, Oakmount Road and Brownhill Road, Chandlers Ford as 

shown on the attached map within the area marked in red. 

For the avoidance of doubt the Restricted Area is shown red on the attached Order 

plan. 

Dated this  15th  day of September 2016 

The Common Seal of Eastleigh Borough Council 

Was affixed to this Order in the presence of - 

 

…………………………………………………………… 

 

………………………………………………………….. 

 

Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
APPENDIX B 

SURVEY 
 

 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
Proposal and FAQ document 

 
 

Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for Chandlers Ford 

This consultation is about tackling the issue of anti-social behaviour related to street 
drinking in Chandlers Ford. 

This has become increasingly prevalent and problematic over the last six months, 
particularly around the area of Fryern Arcade and the shopping centre of the town. 

Eastleigh Borough Council has the power to make Public Spaces Protection Orders 
(PSPOs). These orders allow for control of activities that can have a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those living and working within the local area. 

The orders give Police Officers and Police Community Support Officers additional 
powers to tackle street drinking when associated with anti-social behaviour. This 
includes the seizing and disposing of alcohol which is being consumed within the 
designated PSPO area. 

This consultation is to canvass local opinion on the plans to introduce a Public 
Spaces Protection Order in Chandlers Ford. 

We would like to know: 

 Whether you agree with the proposal . 

 If there are any alterations  you would like to see to the geographical area for 

the PSPO   

 What impacts the order may have on the area or on local people. 

 
The PSPO’s aim to improve and protect the local area. We value your opinion and 
this is your opportunity to have your say.  
We would like to hear the views of everyone who may be affected by the proposed 
PSPO.. These views will be considered before any decision is made on the 
proposed PSPO by the Local Area Committee for Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury 
when they meet on July 6 2016. 

This consultation closes opens on Tuesday 31 May and closes on Monday 11 July 
2016. 

 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

How do I get involved? 

The formal consultation period will run for three weeks. 

There are three main ways to take part in the consultation: 

By writing to us   directly by: 

1. Email: CommSafe@eastleigh.gov.uk 

2. Post:  Chandlers Ford PSPO consultation, Community Safety, Eastleigh Borough 

Council, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

3. Completing an online questionnaire form which can be found at: 

https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/B5WL5H7 

Prior to responding please read the following information: 

A. Background Information 

B. Proposed  scope of the PSPO 

C. Frequently asked  questions 

A. Background information 

Public Space Protection Orders were created in the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and 

Policing Act 2014 and can be used to regulate activities in particular public places 

that can have a detrimental effect on the local community. They can help by giving 

local councils and local police additional powers to tackle antisocial behaviour in 

specific locations. 

In the last 6 months there have been an increasing number of calls and complaints 

by members of the public and local businesses to the police and the council about 

anti-social behaviour in Chandlers Ford town centre generally - and in Fryern Arcade 

in particular. Most of these calls relate to behaviour by adult males who are drinking 

alcohol, fighting or urinating in public. 

The authorities have tried a number of measures to reduce this behaviour and some 

of these have been successful with certain individuals. However the area has now 

attracted many other individuals from other parts of Hampshire and the problems 

have continued. Following representations by the police, shopkeepers, and members 

of the public, the Council has decided that it should consider using the powers 

granted to it to try and control the behaviour outlined. 

One measure proposed is the introduction of a controlled alcohol zone. 

20

mailto:CommSafe@eastleigh.gov.uk
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/B5WL5H7


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

B . Proposed scope of the order 

This Public Space Protection Order proposes to bring in a controlled alcohol zone for 

the shaded area of Chandlers Ford shown on the map. This measure will mean that, 

whilst it is not an offence to drink alcohol in a public space, it will be an offence to fail 

to comply with a request by an authorised officer to cease drinking or surrender 

alcohol. 

The order will provide the police and other accredited officers with the power to 

require individuals to stop consuming alcohol within a designated public place.   

Such an order provides a power of confiscation and disposal of the alcohol, plus a 

police power of arrest for failure to comply with directions.   

These discretionary powers will allow authorised officers to take positive action 

where appropriate and prevent disorder; the alcohol consumption must be 

associated with anti-social or disorderly behaviour or the belief that such behaviour 

may occur. 

C. Frequently asked questions 

1. What are Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO)? 

These are areas that can be designated by Eastleigh Borough Council where anti-

social behaviour has been causing a nuisance or annoyance. In these areas, police, 

police community support officers and some council officers have certain powers to 

tackle such behaviour. 

2. Are there time restrictions on a PSPO? 

The PSPO will be in force all hours of the day, every day. The PSPO will last for up 

to three years and can be extended following a review. 

3. Will there be any extra policing to enforce the PSPO? 

No. Police Neighbourhood Teams will continue to patrol and respond to incidents as 

part of their community response. 

4. What are the benefits of a PSPO? 

The main benefits of a PSPO are to help tackle anti-social behaviour associated with 

street drinking, begging, urinating in the street, and aggressive or intimidating 

behaviour of groups or individuals. 

5. What are the concerns and issues with street drinking? 

Street drinking is sometimes associated with anti-social behaviour, causing high 

levels of noise, rowdy and nuisance behaviour, harassment and intimidation of 

passers-by, as well as the littering of cans and bottles.  

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

6. How will the PSPO work? 

Officers can request people to stop drinking alcohol in the designated public places 

and ask to surrender their drink, including unopened containers of drink being 

carried. If people refuse they can be issued a fixed penalty notice of up to £75 and/or 

face prosecution. 

A PSPO is not an outright ban on street drinking. It is not an offence to consume 

alcohol in a public place; the offence is failing to comply with an officer’s request. 

7. Can I be stopped or arrested for carrying alcohol or legal highs in public spaces? 

A PSPO does not make it illegal to carry alcohol or to drink alcohol in a public place. 

So long as drinking is done responsibly a PSPO will only be used to tackle alcohol 

related, anti-social behaviour or disorder. Under these circumstances police and 

council officers (where designated) will have the power to stop people drinking 

alcohol and seize or confiscate alcohol within the controlled area. If you fail to 

comply with an officer’s request to stop drinking and/or dispose of alcohol, you could 

face a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN). 

8. Do Police already have these powers? 

The Police can make an arrest for street drinking related anti-social behaviour, or 

similar behaviour from intoxication by other substances. However, it is only an 

offence to refuse an officer’s request to stop drinking alcohol/taking legal highs or to 

surrender alcohol/legal highs when asked, where a PSPO is in operation. Where 

there is no PSPO in operation, it is not an offence alone to refuse to surrender 

alcohol/legal highs, although any related anti-social behaviour can give cause for 

arrest. 

9. Will there be signs alerting people to the new PSPO? 

Yes. 

10. Would people still be able to drink or hold alcohol bottles outside pubs? 

Yes. 

The PSPO does not make it illegal to drink alcohol in a public place. However, if a 

person was to drink beyond the legal boundary of a licensed premise and they do 

not stop drinking if asked to do so by a police officer or another designated officer, 

then they could be at risk of breaching the Order. 

11. Are licensed premises affected? 

Although a PSPO would restrict alcohol consumption in a public area the Act states 

that licensed premises are not affected. 

12. What about street parties and events in parks? 

22



Inn
(PH)

Halfway
Library

Arcade
Fryern

Chandler's Ford
Methodist Church

Superstore

Car Park

WINCHESTER ROAD

OAKMOUNT
ROAD

Date:

Map Ref:

Scale:

13/05/2016

Community
Safety

SU4421SW

Title:

Fryern Arcade PSPO

Public Space
Protection Order

1:2000

© Crown copyright and database rights (2016) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



14/09/2016 
 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 
 
CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 14 September 2016 Case Officer Rosie 
Rivers 

 
 
SITE: 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AW 
 
 Ref. F/16/78963 Received: 25/07/2016     (21/09/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Ms J Hurst 

 
PROPOSAL: Two storey front, side and rear extension with new 

vehicular access from Nichol Road (amended design 
to F/16/78385) 

  
AMENDMENTS:  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The proposed development due to its scale, form, design and proximity to 

the boundary of Randall Road would be overly prominent and a visually 
intrusive form of development detrimental to the street scene and 
character and appearance of the surrounding area. The proposal is 
therefore considered to be contrary to Saved Policy 59.BE of the 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2001-2011, Policy DM1 of the submitted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury Character Area Appraisals SPD and paragraph 53 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
Note to Applicant: The application was refused following the 
assessment of the following plans: 02_ Rev J, 04_ Rev J, 09_ Rev J. 

 
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach 
to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 

25

Agenda Item 9



possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in 
a timely manner. 

  

 
 
Report: 
 
This application has been referred to Committee on the basis of the previous 
planning history and at the request of the Local Members. 
 

Description of Application 
 

1. The application proposes two storey front, side and rear extensions, 
allowing for a complete internal rearrangement and provision of four 
bedrooms at first floor, one with an en-suite and a master bedroom with 
an en-suite and dressing room. At ground floor the scheme provides for 
a vaulted entrance hall, lounge, open plan kitchen/dining/family room 
and separate utility and w.c. 

 
2. The two storey front gable extensions form a three gable front, the side 

gable facing Randall Road would be set back from the front of the 
dwelling by 4.2m. A two storey side and rear extension with a gabled 
roof. The gabled roof and one dormer window are proposed in the side 
elevation facing Randall Road. To the rear, the two storey extension on 
the northern side extends a further 1.2m from the existing single storey 
extension, with a twin gable design. Towards the southern side of the 
property, the projection varies from 1.3m to 3m deep. 

 
Site Characteristics 

 
3. The existing dwelling is a modest, detached bungalow with front and 

rear flat roof dormer windows and a single storey flat roof extension to 
the rear. It sits within a corner plot, approximately 1101m.sq, with the 
dwelling orientated towards Nichol Road. Side access is currently 
provided from Randall Road, with a detached single garage close to 
the access and the rear garden towards 2 Randall Road. 

 
4. The frontage of the property is partly open to Nichol Road, with 

vegetation planted partly along the front of the site. The side boundary 
to Randall Road comprises a 1.8m close boarded fence and vegetation 
planted in front of the fencing. There is an open side access to the rear 
garden and hedging along the remainder of the boundary. Close 
boarded fencing is positioned along the boundary between no.52 and 
54. 

 
5. There are protected trees in the front and rear garden. The site is 

covered by blanket and individual TPOs. 
 

6. The residential area in general has an attractive, well treed character, 
with buildings generally set back to provide front gardens and parking 

26



areas. The buildings are typically substantial detached dwellings, one 
and two stories with varied design. Plot size and building line is 
generally consistent, with the two corner properties no. 50 and 52 
being set slightly further back than the other dwellings in the street. 
These corner properties have some similar design features, but are 
orientated differently and occupy a different footprint. 

 
7. There have been a number of recent developments in Nichol Road, 

where smaller properties have been substantially extended or replaced 
with larger, more contemporary homes.   

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
8. F/16/78385: Two storey front, side and rear extensions and new 

vehicular access from Nichol Road. Permit 13/07/2016 
 

9. F/14/75116: Two storey front, side and rear extension with new 
vehicular access from Nichol Road. Refused 03/12/2014, Appeal 
dismissed 09/04/2015 

 
10. T/14/74745: Reduce lowest limb by 2m to 1no. Sweet Chestnut, crown 

lift to 6.5m, remove epicormic growth to upper crowns, remove 
immature co-dominate stem at base of 2nd tree in group, crown clean 
to Group Sweet Chestnuts, crown lift to 6.5m, reshape and prune to 
1no. False Acacia. Part consented part refused 05/09/2014  

 
11. F/14/74412: Two storey front, side and rear extension with new 

vehicular access from Nichol Road. Refused 17/06/2014 
 

12. T/14/74224: Crown lift to 6.5m 1no. Sweet Chestnut (T7) and 1no. Oak 
(T10), reduce laterals to 5no. Sweet chestnuts (G2) to give 1.5m 
clearance from the underlying garage and fell 1no. Acacia (1) and 1no. 
Sycamore (2). Part consented, part refused 16/05/2014 

 
13. Z/06707/003/00: Ground floor rear extension. Granted 12/05/1978 

 
Representations Received 

 
14. 7 letters of objection have been received on the following grounds: 

 New proposal ignores previous objections 

 Increases sideways towards Randall Road 

 Slate roof and UPVC cladding changes the visual impact of the 
property 

 Impact on amenities of no.54 through overlooking, 
overshadowing, reduced sunlight, privacy and loss of outlook 

 Impact on character and appearance of the area 

 Extended property is disproportionate to existing dwelling 

 Impact on trees 

 Highway safety 

 Property covenants 

27



 Reverts back to previous refusal and dismissed appeal 

 Out of proportion with the opposite house in Randall Road 
 

Consultation Responses 
 

15. Tree Services Manager: No objection, recommends conditions 
 

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Character Area 
(Hiltingbury Road West) 

 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan 
Policies 

 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved 
Policies: 59.BE, 104.T 

 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 
Policies: DM1, DM24 

 
16. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; 
and the Schedule of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the 
Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 
2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking 
Standards (January 2009) 

 Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Character Area Appraisal 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

17. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that 
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  

 
18. Para 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable 

development and states that development proposals which accord with 
the development plan should be approved without delay. Where the 
development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date 
planning permission should be granted unless the adverse impacts of 
the development would outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the 

28



Framework indicate development should be restricted (paragraph 14). 
Local plan policies that do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed 
to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in the 
plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight 
that may be given. 

 
19. Paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that 

“The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 
is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people.”  

 
20. Paragraph 64 states that “Permission should be refused for 

development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available 
for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it 
functions.” 

 
Policy Commentary 

 
21. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against 

which this application will be assessed. 
 

Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations 
Received 

 
22. A number of letters of representation have been received from the 

neighbouring properties. The concerns raised have been addressed in 
the report.  

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
23. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

states:- 

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise." 

 
24. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Principle  

 
25. The development site falls within the built urban edge, as part of an 

established residential area. The principle of development is 
considered to be acceptable subject to the proposed scheme being 
appropriate in nature, design and siting, in accordance with the 
relevant local planning policies and guidance. 

29



 
26. In this case the relevant saved local plan policies are 59.BE and 104.T. 

 
27. Saved Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full 

and proper account of the context of the site including the character 
and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, 
materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires a high standard of 
landscape design, a satisfactory means of access and layout for 
vehicles, cyclists and neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of 
light, loss of outlook, and noise and fumes. Policy 104.T requires 
adequate off-highway parking to be provided. 

 
28. Also relevant to this application, is the Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury 

Character Area SPD, of which this application falls within Hiltingbury 
Road West. 

 
29. The guidance contained within this area states that proposals should 

ensure that: 

 sufficient garden depth and area is retained by existing or 
replacement dwellings, commensurate with their size and 
character, which can accommodate appropriate tree planting in 
keeping with the character of existing plots.  

 no healthy mature trees would be felled or likely to be damaged  

 the design of any new building work, including extensions, is 
compatible with the character of adjacent good quality properties 
and fits well into the overall street-scene  

 the existing building line along street frontages is respected  
 

Planning history 

30. The planning history is also of relevance. Application F/14/74412 for 
extensions to the dwelling was refused in June 2014 under delegated 
powers for the following reasons: 

 
“No arboricultural information has been submitted to allow an 
assessment of the impact of the proposed works on protected trees. 
The scheme therefore fails to take proper account of the context of the 
site, in accordance with saved policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and emerging policy DM1 of the Revised 
Pre-submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.” 
 
“The proposed scheme, by reason of the design, height, depth and 
mass, would result in a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of 
the adjoining property, no.54 Nichol Road, contrary to saved policy 
59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011.” 
 

31. A further application was submitted under application F/14/75116 for 
extensions to the dwelling. This application sort to address the reasons 
for refusal and was accompanied by arboricultural information and a 
daylight and sunlight assessment. The application was refused in 

30



December 2014 at the Local Area Committee and subsequently 
dismissed at appeal. The application was refused for the following 
reasons: 

 
“The proposed extended dwelling would result in an overdevelopment 
of the application site by reason of its scale, height, depth and mass 
located on an open corner position, having a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the locality. As such the proposal is 
contrary to Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review [2001-2011], emerging policy DM1 of the Submitted Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014, the Submitted Local Plan 
and the Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Character Area, Adopted 
January 2005.” 

 
“The proposed development, by reason of the design, scale, height, 
depth and mass would result in a detrimental impact on the amenity of 
the adjoining property, no. 54 Nichol Road, contrary to Saved Policy 
59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review [2001-2011]; 
emerging policy DM1 of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029, July 2014, the Submitted Local Plan and Quality Places 
Supplementary Planning Document, Adopted November 2011.” 

 
32. An application for extensions was submitted under application 

F/16/78385 for extension to the dwelling. The application was approved 
at the Local Area Committee and the permission is currently extant. 
The approved application, previously refused application and appeal 
decision are material consideration in the assessment of the current 
application. 

 
33. The following amendments have been made to the current application 

in comparison to the approved application F/16/78385: 

 the existing dwelling has a gabled roof, the previously approved 
application proposed hipping the roof of the dwelling. The current 
application now proposes to maintain the gable on the north 
elevation and a gabled roof is proposed on the extended south 
elevation. 

 the south elevation, with the proposed gabled roof would extend 
further towards Randall Road than previously approved. 

 the width of the resultant dwelling has been increased by 1.7m. The 
proposal now maintains a separation distance to the side boundary 
facing Randall Road of 3.3m at a minimum increasing to 5.2m at a 
maximum 

 
Character and appearance 

 
34. The previously approved application F/16/78385 was approved at the 

Local Area Committee. It was considered that the approved 
application, on balance, had overcome the previous reasons for refusal 
and the dismissed appeal, due to the separation to the boundary 
between the resultant dwelling and Randall Road, the extensions had 

31



maintained space at the corner of the site and the roof had been 
altered so that the gable roof had been removed on the side elevations 
and the roof fully hipped away from Randall Road.  

 
35. The current application proposes to maintain the existing gabled roof 

on the north elevation and proposes a gabled roof on the south 
elevation that would extend further towards Randall Road, than the 
existing dwelling. The proposal would extend 3m further towards 
Randall Road. The rear section of the extension would extend 1.4m 
further towards Randall Road than the existing dwelling.  

 
36. Due to the alterations to the roof and the extensions proposed the 

resultant dwelling would only maintain a separation distance of 3.3m to 
the boundary with Randall Road increasing to 5.4m in comparison to 
the approved scheme that maintained a separation distance of 4.9m 
increasing to 5.4m. Part of the roof of the dwelling would also be 
gabled rather than hipped as previously approved. 

 
37. The previous application F/14/74412 was refused at the Local Area 

Committee and dismissed at appeal as it only maintained a separation 
distance of 3.3m to the boundary with Randall Road and a gable roof 
was positioned on this south elevation. The Inspector considered in his 
report that  

 
‘the appeal proposal would result in the most forward section of the 
southern flank of the existing building increasing from its present 6m to 
11m and encroaching 3m southwards to be within 3.5m of the 
boundary with Randall Road. Furthermore, with the proposed steep 
roof pitch, all of that elevation’s 11m would be perceived as 
representing the maximum height of the building. When it is read with 
the projection of the side gable at the same height I consider that views 
in both directions along Randall Road the bulk and scale of the building 
would be visually obtrusive and a jarring feature. 
 
This would be at odds with the openness on the opposite side of the 
road and the generous front building line of the houses further along 
Randall Road, even allowing for the fact that intervening trees tend to 
prevent the appeal property being read with those properties. 
Moreover, when this side and rear extension is taken together with the 
proposed 4.5m depth front extension, the overall openness of the 
corner would be compromised’. 

 
38. It is acknowledged that the proposed extension would maintain 

separation to the boundary corner of the site where Randall Road 
meets Nichol Road. However, concerns are raised regarding the 
impact of the proposal on Randall Road. It is considered that the 
proposed changes to the roof of the dwelling and the projection of the 
gable further towards Randall Road reduces the spacing between the 
dwelling and Randall Road. As detailed above in the Inspectors 
comments this was a previous reason for dismissing the appeal and 

32



the proposal is considered to be reverting back to the previously 
refused application F/14/75116 and the dismissed appeal. 

 
39. It is considered that the proposed changes to the roof and the 

projection of the gable roof towards Randall Road would make this side 
elevation overly prominent in the street when viewed in both directions 
from Randall Road. It is therefore considered that the proposal would 
be visually obtrusive and a jarring feature in the street as previously 
considered by the appeal inspector and dismissed at appeal. 

 
40. The proposed changes to the previously approved application are 

therefore considered to cause material harm to the street scene and 
character and appearance of the surrounding area. Due to the changes 
to the roof and the projection of the extension towards Randall Road, 
the proposal is not considered to maintain the openness of this part of 
Randall Road. 

 
41. The proposal is therefore considered to conflict with Policy 59.BE of the 

Local Plan and the Character Appraisal SPD which requires that the 
design of any new building work, including extensions, is compatible 
with the character of adjacent good quality properties and fits well into 
the overall street-scene.  

 
42. Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring properties regarding 

the details of the proposed materials. If permission were to be granted, 
conditions for the submission of materials prior to commencement of 
development could be recommended on any planning approval. 

 
Residential amenity 

 
43. The previously approved application F/16/78385 concluded that the 

proposed extensions would not cause material harm to the amenities of 
the neighbouring property in terms of over dominance or loss of light.  
Therefore the main changes to the proposal will be considered with 
regards to the impact on the neighbouring property. 

 
44. The main change to the proposal in relation to the impact on the 

neighbouring properties amenity is to maintain the gabled roof of the 
existing dwelling on the north elevation. In considering the 25 degree 
test which relates to light to windows facing the proposed development, 
it is acknowledged that the gabled roof would fail the 25 degree test. 
However, this is an existing element on the dwelling and this 
relationship between the existing dwelling on the site and the 
neighbouring property currently exists and therefore it is considered 
unreasonable to refuse the application on this basis. 

 
45. It is considered that the proposed changes to the proposal would not 

cause material harm to the amenities of the neighbouring property.  
 

33



46. Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring property regarding 
overlooking, if permission were to be granted conditions could be 
attached to obscure glaze the windows to prevent overlooking to the 
neighbouring property.  

 
Trees 

 
47. There has been no material change in circumstances with regards to 

the protected trees at the front of the site. No objection was raised on 
the previous application with regards to the impact on the trees subject 
to conditions. The Council’s Tree Services Manager has been 
consulted on the application and has confirmed that the conditions 
recommended on the previous application are applicable to this current 
application. If permission were to be granted conditions in relation to 
tree protected would be recommended. 

 
Access 

 
48. The proposed access arrangements have not been changed from the 

previously approved application. Therefore no objection on access and 
parking are raised on the current application. If permission were to be 
granted conditions in relation to the drive would be recommended.  

 
Property Covenants 

 
49. The residents at 54 Nichol Road have indicated that this scheme is 

contrary to restrictions and obligations (covenants) set out in the deeds 
to these properties. The presence of covenants is not a material 
planning consideration and cannot be taken into account when 
determining a planning application. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
50. Also of relevance is the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 

- 2029, July 2014.  While not yet adopted it does carry weight by virtue 
of being intended as the current local plan’s replacement.  With regards 
to this application, the new policies essentially echo those of the 
current plan and are not considered to affect the recommendation put 
forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
51. In light of the assessment above, the proposed development is 

considered to result in an overly prominent, visually intrusive and 
jarring feature in the street scene. The proposal would impact on the 
street scene and character and appearance of the surrounding area 
and therefore conflicts with Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan, Policy DM1 
of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore 
recommended for refusal. 

34



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Implementation of a Public Space Protection Order - Chandler's Ford
	APPENDIX D Fryern PSPO Map

	9 Planning Application - 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AW

